
BOW VALLEY REGIONAL TRANSIT SERVICES COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

BVRTSC Boardroom, Banff 

 
AGENDA 

September 14, 2016: 2:00 – 4:00 pm 

 

1. Call to Order 
 

 

2. Approval of the Agenda 
 

 
3. Approval of the August 10, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes (attached) 

 
 

4. Old Business (including Standing Items) 
a) CAO’s Monthly Report – August 2016  
b) Bring Forward List of Pending Items (includes update on youth fares). 
c) Transit Service Monthly Statistics (attached). 

 
5. New Business 

a) Presentation - Proposed Capital and Operating Plans 
b) Strategic Plan – Review of Plan with Revisions 

 
 

6. Adjournment 
 

 
 



 

 

 

 
 

Previous Meeting Minutes 



BOW VALLEY REGIONAL TRANSIT SERVICES COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
BVRTSC Ian Mackie Boardroom, Banff 

 
MINUTES 

August 10, 2016: 2:00 – 4:00 pm 
 
 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 
Sean Krausert, Town of Canmore – Chair 
Karen Sorensen, Town of Banff 
Davina Bernard, ID#9 – Vice Chair 
Corrie DiManno, Town of Banff 
 
BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT 
Dave Schebek, ID#9 
Joanna McCallum, Town of Canmore 
 
BOARD ADMINISTRATION PRESENT  
Martin Bean, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
ADMINISTRATION PRESENT 
Robert Earl, Town of Banff 
Jacob Johnson, Town of Canmore 
 
ADMINISTRATION ABSENT 
Alex Kolesch, Parks Canada 
Ethan Gorner, ID#9 
Steve Nelson, BVRTSC 
Adrian Field, Town of Banff 
 

 

1. Call to Order  

Sean Krausert called the meeting to order at 2:00 PM. 
 
 

2. Approval of the Agenda 
 
BVRTSC16-48 Sean Krausert moves the approval of the agenda as circulated. 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

1 
 



3. Approval of the July 14, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes (attached) 
 
BVRTSC16-49 Sean Krausert moves for the approval of the July 14, 2016 minutes as circulated. 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

4. Old Business (including Standing Items) 
 

a) CAO’s Monthly Report – August, 2016  
 
CAO commented that the Lynx bus is also in service. 
 
Significant maintenance challenges with Sheep bus over the last three weeks due to time expired 
parts, which are being rectified by maintenance team. 
 
Banff Local Service Review has received 248 survey responses to date and is open until Sept. 10 

• Sean Krausert asked for some direct feedback from hotel partners as part of service review. 
 

KPIs to be sent to Board members once done  
 

 
b) Bring Forward List of Pending Items (attached). 

 
Two items to drop off the list as the Youth Pass report and the ID9 Report are being presented in 
today’s meeting 
 

c) Transit Service Monthly Statistics (attached). 
 

Davina requested that we ensure the full statistics package is disseminated on a quarterly basis. 
 
Mayor Sorensen commented that Banff is concerned with the ridership levels and we need to ensure 
that the measurements are available to set targets.   
 
BVRTSC to look at obtaining some promotional expertise to increase ridership. 
 
Martin Bean provided information indicating that Brewster’s shuttle is carrying approximately 50% 
of the passengers that Roam is carrying up to the Sulphur Mountain area. 
 
Martin Bean noted discrepancy in CB Regional statistics that requires review (increase noted at 15% 
however is likely higher).  Jacob Johnson commented that the estimate for ridership due to the 
increase was expected to be 13% and we are achieving over that. 
 
Discussion on fares and whether they should be adjusted to increase ridership further on CB regional. 

  

2 
 



5. New Business 
 

 
a) ID9 Report (Lake Louise to Banff) 
 
 BVRTSC16-50 Sean Krausert moves that, subject to approval by ID9 Council with respect to 

covering costs, the Commission directs Administration to move forward with the selection of a 
qualified consultant to complete a Banff to Lake Louise Service Implementation and Service Design 
plan. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

b) Regional Youth Pass Report 
 
 BVRTSC16-51 Sean Krausert moves that the Commission make permanent the current Regional 10 

Ride Youth fare type and the Regional 31 Day fare type as recommended by Administration. 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
c) Quarterly Financial Reporting (Acknowledgement of Overages) 

 
Martin Bean provided information on the change to the quarterly reporting and budgeting that now 
allocates revenue and expenses to the services that they are attributed to rather than reconciling 
only at year end. 
 
Sean Krausert commented that more in depth notes are required in any areas that are anticipated 
to be over budget at year end.  Also expressed concern that the maintenance charge was increased 
by 15% after budgeting was completed as it does not allow the Commission to properly plan. 
 
Robert Earl would like to see the KPI’s as discussed broken down by route to be in a position to 
better analyze and comment on the budget and financial results.  
 
Martin Bean verbally provided areas that are anticipated to be over budget at the end of the year: 

• WCB will be over at year end due to underestimating wages in 2015 
• Maintenance will be over significantly due to increased parts expense and unanticipated 

maintenance labour increase. 
• Insurance will be over due to change in classification and additional buses arriving during 

the year. 
• Accounting fees will be close to budget and will be monitored going forward. 
• Copier lease will show over budget however it is only a classification change. 
• NextBus will be over by approximately $8,200 or 23% due to high exchange rate. 
• Advertising and marketing will be very close to budget and monitored. 

 
 
 BVRTSC16-52 Sean Krausert moves that the financials are accepted as presented and to approve 

the budget line overages as described.  
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
 

3 
 



d) Presentation of Initial Budget 
 

Sean Krausert reminded the Commission of the process; that this is an initial presentation and that 
nothing will be voted on today.  It will just be presented for questions, with comments to be provided 
to the CAO by August 26.  From that point, the proposed budget will be presented in September for 
voting with any amendments to be made.  It will then go to the municipal partners and the public for 
30 days and then to be voted on at the October Commission meeting. 

Discussion on whether unapproved grant funding and the corresponding projects should be included 
in the capital and operating budgets.  Banff and Canmore may have different perspectives on this 
and individual municipal discussions will occur prior to final approval. 

Robert Earl requested service level clarification as to whether the budget drives the service levels or 
desired service levels drive the budget.  CAO reported that budget traditionally has driven the service 
levels however that will be changing with municipal feedback.  

Chair asked administration to make any changes to draft budget by Friday, August 12 and then 
forward to Board Members and Municipal Partners. 

 

e) Strategic Plan Review 
 

It was noted by the CAO that the Strategic plan is heavily weighted in 2017 and that may need to be 
adjusted. 

Feedback to be provided in writing to Commission administration by August 31.  Changes will be 
brought to the September meeting for further discussion with the final strategic plan to be approved 
at the October 20 meeting. 

 
 

6. Adjournment  
 

 BVRTSC16-53 Sean Krausert moves to adjourn the meeting at 3:23 PM. 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
 

 
 

4 
 



 

 

 

 
 

CAO Report 



 

1 

 

 

CAO Report – September, 2016 

 

The current items to report on are: 

 Canmore Local Service 

 

o Stop locations have been finalized with signs currently being designed.  The stops 

are planned to be installed over the next month and signs in place concurrently. 

 

o Route scheduling has been finalized and mapping is currently being developed. 

  

o Renovations are currently being completed on the building at 115 Boulder 

Crescent with the building being ready for bus parking in late October. 

 

o Communication plan is currently being finalized with initial information being 

disseminated through the paper and questions being directed to the Roam Transit 

website. 

 

 

 

 Grant Funding: 

 

o Public Transit Infrastructure Fund submission has been completed and was sent 

in prior to the July 29 deadline.  The PTIF announcements have occurred for 

Calgary and Edmonton already and are expected for all other communities over 

the upcoming weeks. 

 

o GreenTRIP3 submissions were sent in prior to the deadline and we are currently 

in the process of answering questions that the Provincial Government has 

regarding the application.  The expectation is for the GreenTRIP3 funding to be 

announced in the next month. 

 

 



 

2 

 

 

 

 Fleet: 

 

o  The new Vicinity buses are in service now with some initial maintenance 

challenges being worked through with the manufacturer.  The second bus (Lynx) 

will be wrapped in October to be ready for Canmore Local Service. 

 

o The Nova buses ordered at the beginning of this year are slated for delivery by the 

end of 2016.  These buses will be in use as spares for the Banff local service and 

the CB Regional service. 

 

 Lake Louise Service: 

 

o A consultant has been hired for an implementation plan and service design for 

Banff to Lake Louise service. 

 

o GreenTRIP3 funding has been applied for to assist with both Lake Louise local 

service and Lake Louise to Banff service. 

 

 Banff Local Service 

 

o TOB shared information at the last traffic management stakeholder meeting on 

Roam and Brewster statistics as well as traffic numbers in Banff.  As per numbers 

below, for July and August: 

 Route 1: Up 5% 

 Route 2: -1% The Free Ride program was up approximately 17% over this 

time period, however we had a 50% reduction in Hidden Ridge guests using 

Transit (3031 down from 6360). 

 The Brewster shuttle was extremely successful due to increased frequency, 

free service, additional marketing and direct service to the Gondola.  

Ridership totals between Brewster and Route 1 across the bridge are 

estimated at: 2015 – 52319, 2016 – 82,278 (a 57% increase of people 

traveling up Sulphur Mountain). 



 

3 

 

 

 

 

 

 Operations: 

  

o The invoice for missed 2015 maintenance expenses has been received from TOB 

and has been paid.  The total for the invoice is $31,013.05. As 2015 financials have 

been closed, this amount will be allocated to 2016 and will negatively affect 

expenses this year.  A note will be added to the financial statements regarding this 

expense at the time that our auditors are in next spring. 

 

 Books on the Bus: 

 

o As of the beginning of September, Roam has introduced “Books on the Bus” in 

conjunction with the Canmore and Banff libraries.  This program is available on 

the main two Regional buses and allows riders to take a book and return it once 

finished.  The libraries will be regularly replenishing the book supplies on the buses.   

 

o See below article from the Rocky Mountain Outlook (September 8) and a big 

thanks to Steve for planning and implementing this program: 

 



 

4 

 

 
 

As the wheels on the bus go ‘round and round,’ passengers can read and read as part of a new community 

partnership program. 

Roam Transit, in a joint effort with Canmore and Banff libraries, launched Books on the Bus for its regional service on 

Tuesday (Sept. 6). 

The six-month pilot project is for a mini-library filled with books and magazines for all ages stationed on Roam’s two 

regional buses. 

The program operates as a “take, read and return” for passengers taking the 25-kilometre trip between the two 

mountain towns. 

“We’re really excited about offering this for our riders and the partnership between public transit and public libraries,” 

said Steve Nelson, manager of operations at Bow Valley Regional Transit Services Commission. “If it’s working 

properly, the intent is it will become a full time program.” 

Passengers will also be allowed to take the book with them off the bus with the intention of returning it to either 

regional bus once they have finished. 

Each week, staff from both libraries will manage and stock the mini-libraries that are installed in a wooden box behind 

the driver’s seat. 

“We think it’s a fantastic idea,” said Michelle Preston, director at the Canmore Library. “The concept of a little free 

library, and making access to reading materials easier is an extension of our services.” 

Sarah McCormack, director at Banff Library, said she has high hopes for the tried and true program that takes the 

library to the community. 

“We’re trying to create library access in various places in the community and it made sense to have books on the bus 

and they go back and forth and help time fly by a bit faster,” said McCormack. 

 



 

 

 

 
 

Bring Forward List 



BRING FORWARD LIST OF ITEMS PENDING (as of September 7, 2016)  

ITEM Date 
Initiated 

Pending 
Date 

Comments: 

BVRTSC16-09 Karen Sorenson moves that the Bow 
Valley Regional Transit Services Commission waive 
transit fares on Roam Transit for up to one year for 
up to eight refugees living in the Bow Valley 
community as part of the Bow Valley Syria Refugee 
Project. 
 

February 
2016 

TBD  

BVRTSC16-11 Sean Krausert moves that BVRTSC 
Administration is directed to explore with the FCSS 
in Canmore, and report back to the Board by the 
May Board meeting, as to implementing a system 
of free Canmore local service transit passes to low 
income individuals, with the system being of the 
same nature as exists in Banff for the Banff local 
service. 
 

February 
2016 

October 
2016 

Board granted request by 
CAO to bring this report in 
June 2016. 
 
Time extended to October 
2016 by BVRTSC16-32. 
 
 
 

 

1 
 



Bow Valley Regional Transit Services Commission 
 

 
Banff Local Service 

Ridership and Revenue Statistics 
Bikes Carried: 321 

Strollers Carried: 101 

Observations: 

 5300 free campground trips in August on Route 2 

 August 2016 Ridership up 1.8% over August 2015 

 Rebound in Revenues 



Month 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2015 Running Total 2016 Running Total Running Total Difference 2015 to 2016 Monthly Difference 2015 to 2016 Monthly % Difference

January 37,730 36,302 38,787 41,973 41,692 41,973 41,692 -280 -280 -0.7%
February 41,031 39,738 39,184 41,240 43,106 83,213 84,798 1,585 1,865 4.5%
March 44,826 45,039 41,733 46,484 47,442 129,697 132,240 2,543 958 2.1%
April 38,652 36,510 36,396 37,483 34,603 167,179 166,842 -337 -2,880 -7.7%
May 47,945 46,739 48,062 52,462 53,248 219,641 220,090 449 786 1.5%
June 47,447 50,267 56,228 64,295 63,260 283,936 283,350 -586 -1,035 -1.6%
July 60,356 62,089 70,162 79,171 83,580 363,107 366,930 3,823 4,409 5.6%
August 64,441 63,224 65,942 81,401 82,854 444,508 449,785 5,277 1,453 1.8%
September 48,767 49,512 53,215 60,204 504,711
October 36,818 34,244 35,769 35,371 540,083
November 33,359 30,911 32,776 33,785 573,868
December 42,073 41,403 46,017 44,156 618,024
Grand Total: 543445 535,978 564,270 618,024 449,785 618,024 449,785 0 -27.2%

 !"#$ %

������������

������������

������������

������������

������������

������������

���
���

���
���

���
���

���	�
����

����� ���������� ������������� �� ������ ���� ������������ ������ ��

�	���
�	 �	���
�� �	���
�� �	���
�� �	���
��








	September  2016 Agenda.docx
	BOW VALLEY REGIONAL TRANSIT SERVICES COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING 

	Previous Meeting Minutes Title Sheet.docx
	DRAFT August 10  2016 Minutes (SK Revised).pdf
	BOW VALLEY REGIONAL TRANSIT SERVICES COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

	CAO Report Title Sheet.docx
	CAO Report September,  2016.docx
	Bring Forward List Title Sheet.docx
	Bring Forward List of Pending Items September 2016 (Chair Revised).pdf
	BanffLocalTitleSheet.docx



